Windsor High School



Athletic/Activities Handbook 2022-2023

Reviewed by Henry County R-I Board of Education On August 9th, 2022 [Page left blank intentionally]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Philosophy	4
Commitment Form	4
Code of Ethics for Athletes/Participants	6
Citizenship Requirements	6
Academic Eligibility	-
Orugs, Alcohol, and Tobacco	g
Multiple Sport Policy	g
Feam Commitment	1(
Team Support	1(
Oress Code and Grooming	10
Fransportation	10
Sportsmanship	1(
Admission Charges	12
2450.0 04500	
Athletics	12
Age Limits	12
Recruiting of Athletes	12
Fransfer for Athletic Reasons	12
Student Health Insurance	12
	13
Physical Examination	13
Rules and Expectations Meeting.	13
Class Attendance	13
Conditioning Requirements	13
Equipment	14
Emergency Care	14
Student Assistants	14
Athletic Lettering Policy	15
Awards Banquet	15
Student Awards	15
All-Star Games	
Amateur and Awards Standards	16 16
Non-School Competition	16
College Auditions and Tryouts	16
NCAA Freshman Initial-Eligibility	
Cheerleading	17
	17
Organizations and Activities	17
Academic Team/Quiz Bowl.	17
Band – Conference	17
Band – Marching	
Band – Pep	17 17
Choir	
Choir – Conference	18
D.A.S.H. (Drug Abuse Stops Here)	18
Family, Career and Community Leaders of America (FCCLA)	18

FFA, National	
Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA)	18
Future Teachers of America (FTA)	19
Math Team	19
National Honor Society	19
Science Club	19
Science Olympiad	19
Spanish Club	20
Speech/Forensics	20
Student Council – High School	20
Student Council – Junior High	20
Yearbook (Shawneeola)	20
Non-Athletic Lettering	20
Band Lettering Policy	20
Choir Lettering Policy	21
Speech Lettering Policy	22
Parent Information	23
Parent/Fan Conduct	23
Parent/Coach Relationship.	23
Communication That Coaches/Sponsors Expect from Parents	23
Communications You Should Expect from Your Student's Coach/Sponsor	23
Appropriate Concerns to Discuss with Coaches/Sponsors	24
Issues Not Appropriate to Discuss with Coaches/Sponsors	24
Forms	25
Activity/Athletic Commitment Form	
Physical Examination Form.	
Dual Sport Participation Form.	
MSHSAA Concussion Information Packet	



Philosophy

Extra-curricular activities are an important part of our school curriculum and they shall operate within the Henry County R-1 educational philosophy. We believe that interscholastic activities supplement the curricular program and, as such, they become a vital part of the student's total educational experience. The activities program provides opportunities and emphasizes definitive areas difficult to duplicate in other school activities or in classroom academic situations.

Some organizations fall under academic class guidelines, as well as, activity guidelines and requirements because a class period is given to the organization as well as academic credit. Such classes have academic objectives and independent grading criteria. Students enrolled in these courses may have other required expectations. The individual staff advisors will acquaint the students with the full scope of responsibilities in those classrooms. Students with varied interests will find opportunities for service and recreation in the organizations at Windsor High School. Students are encouraged to get involved in at least one activity.

Student participation in any of the Greyhound extra-curricular programs is a privilege which carries with it responsibilities to the school; activity; student body; community; and individual student. This participation will help the student develop physically, mentally, socially, and academically.

The athletic program includes the sports of football, volleyball, basketball, baseball, softball, track, golf, and cheerleading. Other sports may be offered through cooperative agreements approved by the Missouri State High School Activities Association (MSHSAA). MSHSAA is a voluntary, nonprofit, educational association of junior and senior high schools established for the purpose of working cooperatively in adopting standards for supervising and regulating interscholastic activities and contests. The Henry County R-1 School District is a member of MSHSAA. At the Henry County R-I School District, we believe in the concept of "participation to win" and that the welfare of the student-athlete is our uppermost concern. Athletics teaches the values of teamwork; the uniting effort to achieve a common goal; personal sacrifice for the common good; optimum physical fitness; pride and graciousness in achievement and sportsmanship; acceptance of defeat without recrimination or loss of motivation; fellowship with others possessing similar goals; and friendship and admiration for opponents.

Commitment Form

Prior to participating in any practice, tryout session, meeting, or contest for any interscholastic sport/event or extra-curricular activity, each athlete/participant and parent must return the "Henry County R-I Activity/Athletic Commitment Form" found on page 24 of this handbook. Parents and students should read completely the policies and information in the activity/athletic handbook. Parents and students must both digitally sign off on the commitment form using the PRIVIT link. The signed form is a contractual understanding between athlete/participant/parents/coaches/sponsors for participation.

- 1. Participation in athletics and activities is voluntary and a privilege.
- 2. The handbook has been read, discussed, and questions answered in regard to the document.

- 3. Participants will follow the school district policies and comply with the requirements listed in the handbook.
- 4. Parents will support the high school in its efforts to promote good citizenship and the requirements listed in the handbook.
- 5. The commitment form must be completed for each school year. Only one commitment form needs to be on file per participant. The commitment form will be digitally signed by the parent and athlete using the PRIVIT link.
- 6. MSHSAA regulations require that coaches obtain parental permission for each athlete in writing before he/she can participate in athletics. The signing of the Henry County R-I Activity/Athletic Commitment Form fulfills this requirement.

Code of Ethics for Athletes/Participants

Henry County R-I School District athletes/participants should observe the following Code of Ethics at all times:

- 1. Eligibility—athletes/participants shall maintain their eligibility at all times.
- 2. Behavior—behavior and citizenship of athletes/participants should be above reproach. On trips, athletes/participants should behave as ladies and gentlemen.
- 3. Training Rules—athletes are expected to follow the training rules as set by each respective sports coach.
- 4. Use of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Drugs—athletes/participants are to abstain from the use of any alcohol, tobacco, and drugs. The use of alcohol and drugs is against the law. This policy is in effect for the entire year and not just during a season.
- 5. Conduct—athletes/participants are to conduct themselves properly and have good sportsmanship at all times.
- 6. Dedication—athletes/participants must be willing to sacrifice and dedicate themselves to sports/activities.
- 7. Language—athletes/participants are to use language that is socially acceptable and proper at all times.
- 8. Respect—athletes/participants are to show respect for coaches, sponsors, teachers, administrators, officials, spectators, school facilities, and equipment.
- 9. Absence and Tardiness—athletes/participants should set the example for each and follow school policy.
- 10. Appearance—athletes/participants should dress properly and appropriately at both home and away events at all times.

Citizenship Requirements

Students who represent a school in interscholastic or extra-curricular activities must be creditable citizens and judged so by the proper school authority certifying a list of students for competition. Those students whose character or conduct both in school and out of school is such as to reflect discredit upon themselves or their schools are not considered "creditable citizens." Conduct shall be satisfactory in accord with the standards of good discipline.

1. A student shall not be considered eligible while under suspension. Students are restricted to practice only for the days that they are in ISS. This restriction begins on the first day of assigned ISS by an administrator. Students may not attend other extra-curricular activities

- while in ISS. Students cannot compete in any competition or practice on a day that he/she has OSS (*Henry County R-I Board of Education approved*—2007). The student who is expelled or who withdraws from school because of disciplinary measures shall not be considered eligible for 365 days from the date of expulsion or withdrawal. *MSHSAA By-Law 212.0*
- 2. Any student who (1) is arrested for, charged with, and/or issued an indictment or information regarding, (2) pleads guilty to, (3) is convicted of, (4) receives probation for, or (5) receives a suspended imposition of sentence for any violation or alleged violation of federal, state, or local law (regardless of whether the matter is pending in a local court, the juvenile justice system, or the adult justice system) shall, within twenty-four (24) hours of the action, notify the Athletic Director or Principal. Failure to provide such notification within the stated time frame will result in the student's removal from the respective team/activity. In addition, students should note that by failing to provide this information, students possibly jeopardize their respective team's season and may cause the team to be placed on probation.
- 3. A student who is involved with criminal behavior and has been charged will be ineligible until all matters have been concluded with the legal system and the school. *MSHSAA By-Law 212.0*
- 4. A student who is found guilty of a law violation shall not be considered a creditable citizen until he/she has satisfied his/her fine and/or penalty. MSHSAA By-Law 212.0
- 5. If a student is on probation under the suspended execution or suspended imposition of a sentence, the student must fulfill all special conditions of the probation such as jail time, payment of a fine, restitution, community service, counseling, etc. before eligibility can be restored. After the student has fulfilled the special conditions of probation, but remains under general conditions of probation only, the Local Board of Education shall determine the eligibility. *MSHSAA By-Law 212.0*

Each individual school has the authority to set more restrictive citizenship standards and shall have the authority to judge its students under those standards. MSHSAA By-Law 212.0

Academic Eligibility

Extracurricular and co-curricular activities and athletics are viewed as an extension of the classroom because they provide an opportunity to teach responsibility, respect, readiness, teamwork, sportsmanship, and proper conduct in public. Being a member of a WHS extracurricular and co-curricular team/organization is considered a privilege and with that privilege comes certain expectations and responsibilities. For the purpose of this policy, participation includes but is not limited to, games, contests, and activities. In addition to the MSHSAA rules and regulations governing student participation, Windsor High School adds the following guidelines:

A student that receives a failing grade at any quarter or semester will be ineligible until the next mid-quarter grading period. Extracurricular and co-curricular activities are defined as any activity occurring outside of the regular school day, such as dances, parties, cheerleading, athletic teams or competition, contest, work at concession stands, etc. Students will be allowed to practice. Academic ineligibility for students will begin on the first day following the distribution of grade cards. Students can earn one (1) credit toward eligibility for the fall semester by

attending summer school. No electives or correspondence courses may be counted towards this requirement. The counting of summer school credits must first be approved by the local school administration.

MSHSAA Academic Policy

2.3.2 Grades 9-12 Requirements: A student in Grades 9-12 must meet the following requirements in order to be academically eligible to participate in interscholastic activities: a. Semester Prior to Participation: The student shall have earned, the preceding semester of attendance, a minimum of 3.0 units of credit or have earned credit in 80% of the maximum allowable classes in which a student can be enrolled in the semester, whichever is greater, or a student must have made standard progress for his or her level the preceding semester in a special education program for the handicapped approved by the Missouri State Department of Education which, though un-graded, enrolls pupils of equivalent age. b. Semester of Participation: The student shall currently be enrolled in and regularly attending courses that offer 3.0 units of credit or 80% of the maximum allowable credits which may be earned, whichever is greater; or a student must be enrolled in a full course at his or her level in a special education program for the handicapped approved by the Missouri State Department of Education which, though un-graded, enrolls pupils of equivalent age. c. 80% Credit Requirement: The calculation of the credit requirement described in a-1 and a-2 above for all enrolled students at the school shall be based on the maximum allowable classes in which a student can be enrolled at the member school during the normal school day due to the academic system that the member school has selected (7-hour day, block schedule, etc.) Credits earned in school-sponsored "extra" classes taken beyond the normal school day may be used toward academic eligibility. Internet classes offered by and at the member school and which are completed no later than the close of the semester with credit placed on the student's transcript can be counted toward academic eligibility. (See also By-Law 2.3.4 regarding correspondence courses.) Page 42 2015-16 MSHSAA OFFICIAL HANDBOOK d. Entry into 9th Grade: A beginning 9th grade student shall have been promoted from the 8th grade to the 9th grade for first semester eligibility. e. A student must be making satisfactory progress towards graduation as determined by local school policies

Eligibility

Eligibility to represent Windsor High School in interscholastic activities and co-curricular activities is a privilege students may earn by meeting the standards of eligibility established by MSHSAA member schools and the Henry County R-1 Board of Education. School Athletic Handbooks, as well as the Student Handbooks are available in the high school office. Eligibility is not a student's right by law, and precedent-setting legal cases have affirmed this. Violations of Windsor student attendance policies may jeopardize athletic eligibility, as well as co-curricular participation in events scheduled with other participating schools. Athletes are to be in school all day on the day of an athletic event in order to participate or attend an event, unless otherwise pre-approved by a school administrator. Students who are Home Schooled must be in attendance a minimum of four hours per day at WHS to participate in any extra-curricular or co-curricular event. The exception would be that a Home Schooled student who is not in school a minimum of four hours per day may be allowed to participate in a local WHS scheduled event such as a music concert, play, or any other co-curricular event where there is no competition with other member schools. Any athlete who is absent without the principal's permission or is truant shall not practice or engage in interscholastic competition and is subject to disciplinary action. If a student

is too sick to be in school any part of the school day, he/she is too sick to participate or attend an interscholastic event or practice.

Drugs, Alcohol, and Tobacco

The use, possession, and distribution of drugs, alcohol, and tobacco are strictly prohibited. These substances are against the law. They prohibit young people from reaching their potential as an athlete and will have long-term negative health effects on the body.

Consequences:

First Violation: The student will be suspended from the next two games or activities following the offense.

Second Violation: The student will be suspended from a minimum of 40% of the competitive season.

Third Violation: The student will be ineligible for 365 days, beginning with the date of the violation.

The loss of eligibility carries over to the next season.

Multiple Sport Policy

A student may only participate in a maximum of two sports in a competition season. Students who are participating in more than one sport during a specific time frame of the school year may continue to be involved in both sports if they individually work with the coach of that sport to make sure they have a minimum number of practices to participate. Students will not be denied the opportunity to be part of a sport because of involvement in another sport. Athletic coaches will cooperate with each other to assure all students have an equal opportunity to participate, practice, and be part of a team organization or sport. All students are eligible for participation in sports if they meet academic, social, and behavioral standards as established by MSHSAA, the district, this policy, and their coaches. Each sport, as deemed appropriate by the coach, will have requirements for tryouts or membership for all participants. These qualifying requirements will be non-discriminatory and appropriate for the students of Henry County R-I School District. Each coach will have built into rules and regulations a policy for appealing an expulsion from a program in which student, parent, sponsor, and/or principal will be involved in a meeting or hearing for reinstatement to the program. The principal will determine if the appeal is approved.

The following guidelines have been developed for students who wish to participate in two sports. Students and parents will also be required to fill out the two sport participation contract declaring their primary sport and secondary sport choices. This form is available through the Athletic Director upon request.

- 1. The athlete must declare a primary sport and secondary sport.
- 2. Practices and games for the primary sport take priority over the secondary sport, unless the secondary sport activity is of a higher-level/post-season event.
- 3. On days when both teams practice, it is up to the athlete to find out what is expected for the secondary practice and complete the workouts on his/her own.

4. Primary/Secondary games take priority over practice.

If a student starts participating in two sports in the same season, they can continue to participate in the other sport if they quit or are cut from one of the sports. If a student is only participating in one sport in the season, and gets cut from that sport, they can begin participating in another sport for that season pending coaches approval. However, if they quit or are kicked off from one sport, they cannot begin participating in a second sport in that season unless they have already started participating in the second sport.

Team Commitment

If a player quits a sport after the first game, they will not be able to participate in any manner in an additional sport until the first sport's regular season is completed. Further, student athletes shall participate in school activities before non-school activities. This requirement may be waived by mutual consent of the affected coaches, athletic director and principal.

Team Support

Involvement in interscholastic/extra-curricular activities is voluntary on the part of the students. When a student chooses to participate on a Henry County R-I team they are becoming part of a team. Teams are made up of teammates who are there to support one another, to cheer for one another, and to help one another become the best they can be. The coaches/sponsors and the administration find it very important for the teams to be supportive of one another no matter what level they are participating. Team members are required to stay for the conclusion of the event they are participating in. If for some reason a parent/guardian needs to take a child prior to the end of an event, it must be pre-approved by the coach or sponsor. If an emergency situation occurs, the game supervisor can approve the team member leaving the event early.

Dress Code and Grooming

Students, athletes, and coaches that are involved in interscholastic/extra-curricular activities represent Henry County R-I School District. Therefore, it is of utmost importance to make a good impression. The dress code applies for all sports and activities. Practice clothing must follow school policy. Hairstyles and all facial hair must be maintained in a neat and clean manner as defined by the coach/sponsor, so as to present a positive image for both the team/activity and the school.

Transportation

Travel must be by school-provided transportation. Students must return by school-provided transportation. A student may ride home with his/her parent/guardian if the parent/guardian personally signs the student out with the teacher (including athletic sponsor). The teacher/coach will provide a dated roster for sign out. Only under special circumstances with prior written approval from the administration will a student ride home with another person. Individual coaches/sponsors may require all team members to ride the bus home after an event.

Sportsmanship

Participation in interscholastic/extracurricular activities is an honor and important part of personal growth. The standards we use to define sportsmanship include but are not limited to,

respect, honesty, self-control, positive attitude, responsibility, and courtesy regardless of the event outcome. All event participants (students, sponsor, and spectators) are expected to follow the below standards:

- 1. Show respect for the opponent at all times. When an opposing team visits our school, they should be treated as guests, greeted cordially on arriving, given good accommodations, and accorded the tolerance, honesty, and generosity that all human beings deserve. When visiting another school, we should be cordial and appreciative of our host. Good sportsmanship is the Golden Rule in action.
- 2. Show respect for the officials. The officials should be recognized as impartial arbitrators who are trained to do their job and who can be expected to do it to the best of their ability. Good sportsmanship implies the willingness to accept and abide by the decision of the officials.
- 3. Know, understand, and appreciate the rules of the contest. A familiarity with the current rules of the game and the recognition of their necessity for a fair contest is essential. Good sportsmanship suggests the importance of conforming to the spirit as well as the letter of the rule.
- 4. Maintain self-control at all times. A prerequisite of good sportsmanship requires one to understand his/her own bias or prejudice and the ability to prevent the desire to win from overcoming rational behavior. A proper perspective must be maintained if the potential educational values of athletic competition are to be realized. Good sportsmanship is concerned with the behavior of all involved in the game.
- 5. Recognize and appreciate skills in performance regardless of affiliation. Applause for an opponent's good performance is a demonstration of generosity and good will. The ability to recognize quality in performance and the willingness to acknowledge it without regard to team membership is one of the most commendable gestures of good sportsmanship.
- 6. All school discipline policies and rules apply directly to Henry County R-I students at school activities whether they are held on school property or away from school.

The school's reputation should not be placed in jeopardy because of unsportsmanlike conduct displayed by anyone involved. Violations of this policy will not be tolerated. Unsportsmanlike conduct is defined as any act that would reflect discredit upon an individual's character.

According to the MSHSAA By-Law 710, a school may be suspended from membership in the MSHSAA and from participating in interscholastic activities with other member schools for the unsportsmanlike conduct of teams, coaches, students, and fans. Each school is responsible for the conduct of its teams, coaches, students, and fans at games both at home and away. Players and spectators should support the players in a positive manner rather than possibly placing them in a position of being penalized for unsportsmanlike conduct.

The following policies are established to serve as guidelines for actions to be taken by the school in addition to the mandatory provisions contained in MSHSAA By-Laws 810.

Consequences of Unsportsmanlike Conduct

- 1. If a student should commit an unsportsmanship act while participating in an interscholastic event, the coach in charge shall review the incident with the athlete and have the appropriate correction made.
- 2. If a student should be ejected from an athletic event, he/she shall be ineligible for the next athletic contest. If repeated ejections occur, the athlete's continued involvement in the athletic program will be reviewed and possibly terminated.
- 3. If a student's conduct as a spectator is found to be unsportsmanlike, he/she could be barred from attending any junior high/high school athletic contests.
- 4. The unsportsmanlike conduct of any spectator, regardless of age, could cause that spectator to be barred from attending future inter-scholastic athletic contests.

Admission Charges

Cost of admission to home athletic events is set by the Kaysinger Conference. Current prices are \$4.00 for adults and \$3.00 for students (K-12) for Varsity Football events. \$3.00 for adults and \$2.00 for students to all other activities. Junior High team members, managers, and cheerleaders will be admitted into each others' Junior High games free. High School team members, managers, and cheerleaders will be admitted into each others' High School games free.

Athletics

Age Limits

For grades 9-12:

1. If a student reaches nineteen (19) years of age prior to July 1, he/she will be ineligible the next school year.

For grades 7-8:

- 2. In order to participate on or against teams made up of only seventh graders, he/she must not have reached fourteen (14) years of age prior to July 1.
- 3. In order to participate on or against teams made up of only eighth graders, he/she must not have reached fifteen (15) years of age prior to July 1.
- 4. However, he/she may participate with the next higher grade when he/she no longer meets the age limit for his/her grade.

Recruiting of Athletes

Students will be ineligible for their career at a school if he/she is influenced by a person or persons to attend upon promotion or to transfer schools for athletic or activities purposes. A student may, however, return to his/her original school and be ineligible for just 365 days.

Transfer for Athletic Reasons

A student shall become ineligible for 365 days if he/she transfers to another school for athletic reasons, as defined in MSHSAA By-Law 238.

Student Health Insurance

All athletic participants shall have health insurance coverage before participating in a practice or interscholastic competition. The athletic participant shall verify that he/she has health insurance

coverage through their parents'/guardians' health policy or has purchased a health insurance policy provided through the Henry County R-I School District for their students. Policy information including policy number must be kept on file on the athlete's physical examination form. This requirement applies not only to the regular school year practices and competitions but also to summer activities including camps and pre-season practices.

Physical Examination

All student athletes shall have a completed physical examination form (page 26) submitted to the PRIVIT link before they will be allowed to practice or engage in interscholastic competition. The medical exam certificate is valid if issued on or after February 1 of the previous school year.

Rules and Expectations Meeting

A parent or guardian of the athlete must attend a mandatory Rules and Expectations Meeting with administration of WHS for each Fall/Winter/Spring sport's seasons before the athlete is allowed to participate in competition for the given sport.

Class Attendance

Athletes shall attend classes on a regular basis. Violations of Windsor students' attendance policies may jeopardize athletic eligibility. Athletes must be in school all day on the day of an athletic event in order to participate. If a student misses class(s) without being excused by the principal, the student shall not be considered eligible on that date. Further, the student cannot be certified eligible to participate on any subsequent date until the student attends a full day of classes (or has an excused absence[s] from class) without an unexcused absence. Any student who is truant or absent without the principal's permission shall not practice or engage in interscholastic competition and is subject to disciplinary action. If a student is too sick to be in school any part of the school day, he/she is too sick to participate in any interscholastic event or practice. Students are not allowed to miss a part of a school day to go eat prior to an athletic event.

Conditioning Requirements

Each squad must have 14 days of conditioning practice and each individual must have participated in 14 school conditioning practices on 14 different days prior to the date of the first interscholastic contest in all sports. This requirement shall be met if a student has been a member of another school sports squad immediately preceding the sport season, has been actively practicing with the sport squad, has had 14 days of physical conditioning and begins physical conditioning practice with the new sport squad with no more than seven calendar days having passed between the two sports before beginning practice. If an athlete is ineligible to participate in a given sport because of academic probation in the beginning of the season and is subsequently reinstated eligibility at mid-term, the athlete must complete 14 days of conditioning before competition.

Equipment

All students are responsible for the preservation of school-owned athletic equipment. This equipment must be handled properly and accounted for at the conclusion of the sport season. Any damage or loss of equipment by an athlete will require him/her to reimburse the district at

the value it would cost to replace the item damaged or lost. All uniforms must be returned to the coach one-week after the season is over. If it is not returned in a week's time the coach will make contact with the parent to ensure that the uniform is returned in a timely manner. Items purchased by a team/squad will remain the property of the team/squad, but may be purchased at replacement cost at the end of the season with coach approval.

Emergency Care

The athletic coaches are not doctors. Therefore, they do not diagnose injures. All injuries, except scrapes and abrasions, are to be referred to a doctor of the athlete's choice. A written doctor's release is required before an athlete can return to interscholastic competition or practice. Any injured athlete that could be further injured by moving is to remain as is until emergency personnel or a doctor arrives on the scene. If a contest must be held up, it shall be. If an athlete is injured a coach will contact a parent/guardian immediately. As soon as possible, an accident report shall be completed by the coach in charge and turned in to the Athletic Director's office to be put in the athlete's health file. Any treatment of an athlete shall be done under the direction of the athlete's doctor.

Student Assistants

Some students desire to be associated with, but not participate, in athletics. These students help the coaches in minor responsibilities. The following are guidelines in selecting and having student managers and statisticians:

- 1. Be selected by the coach in charge.
- 2. Be responsible, dependable, loyal, and cooperative with coaches and players.
- 3. Care for equipment under the supervision of the head coach.
- 4. Attend all practices, meetings, and contests as directed by the coach in charge. Student helpers shall work closely with coaches during practices and contests.
- 5. Be assigned specific duties and be responsible for these duties.
- 6. Prepare designated pre-game equipment.
- 7. Follow all team rules and perform additional duties as prescribed by the head coach.
- 8. Return to the coach in charge the Commitment Form signed by parents.

Athletic Lettering Policy

Any student athlete who participates should want to excel and earn recognition. Athletes who meet the following criteria will be awarded an athletic letter "W". Certificates of achievement will be given to all athletes who complete the season.

To earn the "W", an athlete must do the following:

- 1. Display (or model) good school citizenship.
- 2. Take responsible care of school-owned equipment and uniforms.
- 3. Return all issued athletic equipment and uniforms.
- 4. Regularly attend practice.
- 5. Follow the rules set forth by this handbook.
- 6. Participate in varsity events as follows:
 - a. Football play in one-half of the quarters plus two.
 - b. Basketball play in one-fourth of the games' quarters plus two.
 - c. Volleyball play in one-third of the matches.

- d. Softball play in one-third of the innings.
- e. Baseball play in one-third of the innings.
- f. Track score one or more points in the conference track meet or at least eight points from any other track meet.
- g. Golf play in one-half of the matches plus one.
- h. Cheer participate in 90% of the total games.
- i. Wrestling–wrestle in one-third of the matches.
- j. The coach, with the approval of the Athletic Director and Administration, reserves the right to letter an athlete with extenuating circumstances, such as an injury.
- 7. Student helpers (managers and statisticians) who give regular attendance to their duties throughout two seasons will be awarded an athletic letter.

When a student earns a letter, he/she will be awarded a chenille "W", a sport emblem, and a bar. For each succeeding year, a bar will be awarded. If an athlete letters in more than one sport, he/she will be awarded only one chenille "W".

Any player, who thinks he/she should have lettered and did not, can appeal to the appeals committee. The appeals committee is made up of the coach, the principal, and the athletic director. The committee will make the final decision.

Awards Banquet

At the end of the sports season there will be an awards banquet to acknowledge the accomplishments of students. The coaches will recognize all members of their perspective teams and will hand out awards for those students who earned individual awards.

Student Awards

If an athlete has the privilege of earning First Team All-Conference honors, the All-Conference patch will be furnished by the Kaysinger Conference. However, if an athlete earns Honorable-Mention All-Conference honors, the athlete will have the opportunity to purchase the patch. If an athlete earns All-District and/or All-State honors, Windsor High School will purchase these patches for the athlete. If a varsity team wins the Conference Championship, the District Championship, and/or higher, Windsor High School will purchase these patches for the team members.

Windsor High School will award annually a male and female Student Athlete Award voted on by all coaches and administration. The requirements are that the athlete be a senior; participate in two or more sports; and maintain eligibility throughout the school year.

All-Star Games

Students may not compete in an all-star game or contest before they complete their eligibility in each high school sport. Participation in an all-star game or contest before ending their high school eligibility will result in them becoming ineligible to participate in any high school sport.

A senior with no high school eligibility remaining for a specific sport may participate in one All-Star game for that sport during the school year. Talk with the principal before agreeing to play.

An all-star event is one in which an individual is invited to participate due to his or her high school achievements

Amateur and Awards Standards

After entering a member school, a student will become ineligible in the sport concerned if they receive cash for participating in an athletic contest. This restriction applies to all sports in which MSHSAA member schools conduct interscholastic programs.

A student may accept awards, which are symbolic in nature, such as medals, ribbons, trophies, plaques, etc. for participating in a school athletic program.

A student may accept awards, which are merchandise, but such award shall not exceed \$250.00 in the suggested manufacturer's retail price.

Awards as described above presented by a person or group other than your school, must be approved in advance by your school principal and the suggested manufacturer's retail price of a merchandise award shall not exceed \$250.00.

A student may accept awards for participating in non-school sponsored athletic competition only if the awards are symbolic in nature or the merchandise item does not exceed \$250.00 in suggested retail value.

Non-School Competition

A student may not practice for or participate with a non-school team or any organized non-school athletic competition <u>and</u> for their school team in the same sport during the same season.

A student may participate on a school team and non-school team in different sports during the same season; however, they may not practice in organized non-school athletic competition on the same day that they practice with or participate for the school team without prior approval of the building administrator. Before a student joins a non-school team or enters any non-school competitive athletic event, the school principal or athletic administrator should be consulted to make certain these standards are met.

College Auditions and Tryouts

A student may participate in a college tryout, audition, or evaluation event for a specific sport outside the school season of the sport concerned (MSHSAA By-Law 242). They may not miss school time to travel or participate in the event unless the school administrator approves the absence in advance. A student may not miss an MSHSAA-sponsored postseason event to participate in or travel to/from the event. See the administrator before agreeing to attend any such event.

NCAA Freshman Initial-Eligibility

Students need to complete and have approved the NCAA Initial-Eligibility Clearinghouse forms (available from the Counselor or on-line) https://web3.ncaa.org/ecwr3/ before starting practice at the college level. Students should seek help before summer arrives, as not all teachers, counselors, or administrators are available after the school year ends.

Cheerleading

Students who are interested in becoming a Windsor High School cheerleader must try out and be selected based on tryout scores and teacher recommendation scores. Teachers will evaluate cheerleader candidates on ability, attitude, character, responsibility, and personality. Following the practice days, a closed judging session is held. Judges are chosen by the sponsors and may include JH and HS sponsors, teachers, graduating senior cheerleaders, and outside people holding cheerleading knowledge.

Organizations and Activities

Academic Team/Quiz Bowl (MSHSAA)

Academic Team consists of high school students working individually and as a team answering trivia questions. A team consists of 8 students, with 4 competing at one time and substitutions made during a game. Students compete at the local and district levels. Competitions are held on Saturdays with transportation provided by the school. Membership is based on MSHSAA guidelines.

Band-Conference

Members of the Conference band are selected by audition. Students must be active members of the high school band. Selected students will rehearse the predetermined music with musicians from the other Kaysinger schools and a guest conductor. A concert is presented that evening for family, friends, teachers, and members of the public. The location of this event rotates each year and will be announced later

Band-Marching (MSHSAA)

The Marching Band performs during the fall semester. The marching band consists of all high school band members and junior high band members as needed to fill sections. As a co-curricular class, activities include but are not limited to home varsity football games, local parades, and parades in surrounding communities as scheduled by the director.

Band-Pep

The pep band consists of all high school band members and junior high band members as needed to fill sections. As a co-curricular class, the pep band performs at 4 to 6 home varsity basketball games as scheduled by the director. The pep band performs at half time of each game and in between games if more than one contest is scheduled. Musical selections usually consist of but are not limited to various popular rock and roll songs from the past 40 years.

Choir (MSHSAA)

Choir is a course offered to high school students during the regular school day. As a co-curricular course, the choir performs the Star Spangled Banner at many home sporting events.

The choir performs two concerts per year as well as performances at the local heath care facility. Students in the choir have the opportunity to audition for honors choirs such as the West Central All-District Choir and the Kaysinger Conference Choir.

Choir-Conference

Members of the Conference choir are selected by audition. Students must be active members of the high school choir. Selected students will then rehearse the predetermined music with musicians from the other Kaysinger schools and a guest conductor. A concert is presented that evening for family, friends, teachers, and members of the public. The location of this event rotates each year and will be announced later.

D.A.S.H. (Drug Abuse Stops Here)

D.A.S.H. is a club open to anyone grades 7-12, who will take a stand against drugs and alcohol. The purpose of this organization shall be to encourage student peers to have fun without the influence of alcohol and drugs and set a positive example for other students and younger children.

Family, Career and Community Leaders of America (FCCLA)

Family, Career and Community Leaders of America is a national organization of students who have taken or are taking a course in comprehensive or occupational family and consumer sciences classes 9 through 12th grades. FCCLA is one of the largest Career and Technical Student Organizations. The mission is to promote personal growth and leadership development through family and consumer sciences education. Focusing on the multiple roles of family member, wage earner, and community leader, members develop skill for life through-character development; creative and critical thinking; practical knowledge; and career preparation.

The Windsor High School FCCLA Chapter holds a regular meeting once a month. The chapter members pay club dues to cover national, state, and regional dues. It elects chapter officers and purchases club T-shirts. It usually holds an annual fundraiser to help with chapter expenses. Windsor FCCLA travels to the Region 12 Fall meeting at the University of Central Missouri in Warrensburg, MO, and attends the Access FCCLA Conference held at the Tan-Tar-A Resort, in Osage Beach, MO. The organization helps the community in a variety of ways and plans social events throughout the school year. The chapter may elect to celebrate National FCCLA week with various activities and become involved with various competitive events and projects.

FFA, National

The FFA is an organization for students enrolled in high school agriculture education courses. It has local, state, and national levels. The FFA mission is to "make a positive difference in the lives of students by developing their potential for premier leadership, personal growth, and career success through agricultural education."

Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA)

The FBLA mission is to bring business and education together in a positive working relationship through innovative leadership and career development programs. Co-curricular activities include career exploration, civic service, economic education, and fostering entrepreneurship. The goals

are to develop competent, assertive business leadership, strengthen the confidence of students in themselves and their work. FBLA goals are to create interest in and understanding of American business enterprise. Members are encouraged in the development of individual projects which contribute to the improvement of home, business, and community. FBLA facilitates the transition from school to work, assist students in the establishment of occupational goals, encourages scholarship and promotes school loyalty. It encourages the practice of efficient money management, and develops character, prepares for useful citizenship, and fosters patriotism.

Future Teachers of America (FTA)

Future Teachers of America (FTA) is open to high school students who have an interest in teaching as a career. MSTA helps charter local chapters. Member benefits include: Cadet teaching for credit program, spring regional meetings, annual state Leadership Conference, annual newsletter, and leadership and informational materials.

Cadet teaching is a program designed to help high school students who are interested in entering the teaching profession. Cadet teaching, as an elective course, affords students an opportunity to work in a classroom under an experienced, enthusiastic teacher in order to gain some understanding on problems a teacher faces and how these problems may be resolved. Students also get to see the rewards of teaching.

Math Team

Math Team consists of students interested in mathematics. They participate in several competitions that consist of a series of individual and team events. Any high school students interested in participating will prepare for competitions by working with the sponsoring teacher on an as-needed basis.

National Honor Society

This is a nationally recognized group sponsored by the National Association of Secondary School Principals. Members are considered to be superior in scholarship, leadership, character, and service

Science Club

The high school Science Club is an organization of students interested in science and working together as a group in various service activities. Students pay membership dues which help pay for a field trip. Meetings are held as needed.

Science Olympiad

Science Olympiad is an international organization devoted to increasing student interest in science. The tournaments are academic interscholastic competitions that consists of a series of individual and team events. Any high school students interested in participating will prepare for competitions by working with the sponsoring teacher on an as-needed basis. Competitions are held on Saturdays with transportation provided by the school.

Spanish Club

Besides several fiestas after or before school, the club may be involved in the local community in ways they find enjoyable and worthwhile.

Speech/Forensics (MSHSAA)

The National Forensics League is the local chapter of the National Speech Honorary Society for high school students. The organization fosters excellence in speech communications through participation in speech activities and recognition of students' achievements on both the local and national level. To be a member, a student must earn points by participating in the Speech and Forensics Program. The students must abide by the rules in the "Code of Conduct" for the program, enroll in one of the classes of the program, and attend speech tournaments.

Student Council – High School

The Student Council serves as a meeting place between the student body, the staff and administration. The Student Council organizes many school activities. Two representatives from each class along with the class presidents and Student Council officers meet once a week.

Student Council – Junior High

The Junior High Student Council has an active role in Junior High activities. Seventh and eighth grade members attend monthly meetings. They plan dances, decide on the awards for Students of the Quarter and Perfect Attendance recipients, and serve refreshments for Parent/Teacher Conferences, first semester Honors Tea, and the Springs Awards Presentation.

Yearbook (Shawneeola)

Desktop Publishing (Yearbook - *Shawneeola*) is a year-long course that is responsible for creating the school's yearbook. Students in the class must apply for a position on the staff. They must have a B average in English and get two recommendations from teachers. Students are responsible for selling ads and yearbooks in order to make the budget.

Non-Athletic Lettering

Several organizations offer a non-athletic letter for their activity. Each activity offers objective qualifications and criteria for lettering set by the organization. The additional factors of good school citizenship and a constructive, positive attitude are integral criteria of the lettering process. For lettering requirements, aside from those presented herein, check with individual staff advisors.

Band Lettering Policy

Band Letters

(updated 2017)

In order to receive a band letter each student must meet the following criteria:

- a. No unexcused absences from required performances
- b. No absences from a performance due to academic ineligibility
- c. No more than 2 excused absences from required performances

d. Must be a member of the band for the full school year.

Students must then earn a minimum of 300 points in order to qualify for a band letter. Students earning 600 points during one academic year will receive a double letter, and 700 points during the same academic year will receive an honor award. These points will be continuous throughout the student's high school band career. The student earning the most points by the end of their senior year will receive the John Philip Sousa Award. Point values for each extra-curricular activity are listed below.

Summer band camp at WHS		5 point	s per day
Summer band camp away	50 poir	nts	
Private lessons on an instrum	ent		
5 pts per 30 min. lesso	on	50 pts 1	max per year
Church performances-5 pts ea	ach	40 pts 1	max per year
Other extra performances awa	ay from		
School (nursing home	, family		
Concert, etc.) 5 pts ea	ch	40 pts 1	max per year
Attending music concerts awa	ay from		
Windsor-5 pts each		15 pts 1	max per year
Participating in fundraisers-1	0 pts each	50 pts 1	max per year
Clean up/set up for concerts-			
10 pts per cond	cert	40 pts 1	max per year
Uniform secretary		50 pts	
Letter Points secretary		50 pts	
Music secretary		50 pts	
Jr. High participation (marchi	ing, concert)	25 pts 1	max per year
All-District Audition		100 pts	
All-District selection Honora	ble Mention	150 pts	}
All-District selection Honor b	oand	175 pts	}
All-State Audition		175 pts	}
All-State selection		300 pts	}
Attending band workshops-2:	5 pts each	75 pts 1	max
(tuba Christmas, leade	ership, etc)		
Conference Music contest			
1 rating=75 pts	2 rating=50 pts	S	3 rating=25 pts
District Music Contest (solo/e	ensemble)		
1 rating=100 pts	2 rating=75 pts	S	3 rating=50 pts
State Music Contest (solo/ens	semble/band)		
1 rating=150 pts	2 rating=100 p	ots	3 rating=75 pts

Choir Lettering Policy

Choir Letter Points

(updated 2017)

In order to receive a choir letter, each student must meet the following criteria.

A. The student must be a member of the Choir class both semesters of the

- school year.
- B. No unexcused absences from required performances.
- C. Maximum of 1 excused (pre-approved) absence from a required performance per year.
- D. Any performance missed due to ineligibility will result in that student not being eligible to letter for that school year.

Students must then earn a minimum of 200 points in order to qualify for a choir letter. Students earning 400 points in one academic year will receive a double letter, and 500 points during the same academic year will receive an honor award. These points will be continuous throughout the student's high school choir career. The student earning the most points by the end of their senior year will receive the Outstanding Vocalist Award. Point values for each extra-curricular activity are listed below.

Summer Camp away from WHS	50 pts
Private Lessons-5 pts per 30 min lesson	50pts max
Church performance-5 pts per performance	40 pts max
Attending concerts away from WHS-5 per	15 pts max
Participation in school musical	100 pts
Freshman/Sophomore Choir	50 pts
All-District Choir Auditions	50 pts
All-District Choir Selection/performance	150 pts
All-State Choir Auditions	150 pts
All-State Choir Selection/performance	300 pts
Extra performances at Nursing home, etc 5 pts	50 pts
Fundraiser participation 10 pts each	40 pts
Concert set-up/clean-up 15 pts each	30 pts
Choir Choreography	15 pts per concert

Conference Contest	1 rating=50 pts	2 rating=25 pts	3 rating=10 pts
District Contest	1 rating=100 pts	2 rating=75 pts	3 rating=50 pts
State Contest	1 rating=200 pts	2 rating=150 pts	3 rating=100 pts

Speech Lettering Policy

Point System for Lettering: 40 points required for lettering

The Speech letter is a large white chenille letter with "forensics" embroidery in black lettering. This order is filled by the Neff Company.

Points are earned in the following manner:

- 5 points for each public performance per individual event
- 10 points for each public performance per group event
- 2-5 points are service points for community performances
- 5 points will be awarded for theatre attendance...with program and report submitted

National Forensics League

Membership is determined by student achievement in forensics competition and good student recommendation. Membership certification is then framed and mounted on the Talking Greyhound wall of fame in the Public Speaking room. Awards are available online at www.nflonline.org. Upon graduation these members will wear honor cords belonging to the school.

Parent Information

Parent/Fan Conduct

Any parent/spectator that is removed or ejected from athletic or activity events will not be allowed to return to any contest or competition for the remainder of that specific season. A second offense will result in loss of attendance privileges for any and all events for the remainder of that school year.

Parent/Coach Relationship

Both parenting and coaching/sponsoring are extremely difficult vocations. By establishing an understanding of each position, everyone is better able to accept the actions of the other and provide greater benefit to students. As parents, when your student becomes involved in a program, you have the right to understand what expectations are placed on your student. This begins with clear communication from the coach/sponsor of your student's program. Coaches/sponsors and parents are expected to encourage and praise students in their attempt to improve them as students, athletes, and citizens. Parents can facilitate this by gaining an understanding and appreciation of all aspects of the sport/activity and the expectations placed on your student.

Communication That Coaches/Sponsors Expect From Parents

- 1. Concerns should be expressed directly to the coach/sponsor, but NOT immediately before, during, or after a contest or practice. If needed, a meeting should be facilitated and scheduled first with the coach. If conflict has not been resolved after that meeting, a meeting may be scheduled with the athletic director and/or principal.
- 2. Notification of any schedule conflicts should be shared well in advance.

It is important to understand that there may be times when things do not go the way you or your student wishes. If you, as a parent, have a concern, take time to talk with coaches/sponsors in an appropriate manner, including proper time and place, being sure to follow the designated chain of command.

3. Athlete(s) must be present with their parent(s) at any meeting with a coach.

Communications You Should Expect From Your Student's Coach/Sponsor

- 1. Philosophy of the coach/sponsor.
- 2. Expectations the coach/sponsor has for your son/daughter and for all the students involved in the activity.
- 3. Location and times of all practices and contests.

- 4. Team/activity requirements, i.e. fees, special equipment, off-season conditioning/practices.
- 5. Procedure should your son/daughter be injured during participation.
- 6. Discipline that results in the denial of your son/daughter's participation.
- 7. Requirements to earn a school letter for that activity.

Appropriate Concerns to Discuss with Coaches/Sponsors

- 1. The treatment of your student mentally and physically.
- 2. Ways to help your student improve.
- 3. Concerns about your student's behavior.

Sometimes it is very difficult to accept your child not playing/participating as much as you may hope. Coaches/sponsors are professionals. They make judgment decisions based on what they believe to be best for all students involved. As you have seen from the list above, certain things can be and should be discussed with your child's coach/sponsor. Other things such as those listed next, must be left to the discretion of the coach/sponsor.

Issues Not Appropriate to Discuss with Coaches/Sponsors

- 1. Playing/participation time.
- 2. Team strategy.
- 3. Play calling.
- 4. Other student-athletes/participants.

There are situations that may require a conference between the coach/sponsor and the parent. These are encouraged. It is important that both parties involved have a clear understanding of the other's position. Everyone involved is expected to be respectful, to recognize and show appreciation for the other's role, and to reinforce the school's "Code of Conduct" plus the policies and procedures as outlined in this handbook.

<u>Note</u>: The references to MSHSAA's by-laws in this handbook are provided for ease of cross-referencing. Windsor Henry County R-1 School District will adhere to MSHSAA's guidelines at a minimum. However, in certain instances, the District will enforce and hold student athletes/participants to higher standards as set forth in this handbook and approved by our Board of Education.

HENRY COUNTY R-1 ACTIVITY/ATHLETIC COMMITMENT FORM

SCHOOL YEAR
ol District will be required to sign the irst sport/activity that they participate in. als collected from athletes/participants, they ic director BEFORE participating in any
s for any interscholastic sport, each athlete
registered physician or other authorized amination must be on file in the office of the f issued on or after February 1 of the
plastic sport, each athlete must: ry Rules and Expectations meeting with
ndanger my eligibility as a representative of ege to represent my school and I will make
ry County R-I School District expects from cs, and staying free from l. I understand the consequences for lenry County R-I School District student mmitment.
erstand, and will follow all of the school order to be eligible for participation, I
Date
earily in interscholastic athletic/activities, I ughter, and will support the district in its ardians must sign.)
Date
Dateproperly signed prior to the first contest.

(page left blank intentionally)

PRE-PARTICIPATION PHYSICAL EVALUATION

HISTORY FORM
(Note: This form is to be filled out by the patient and parent prior to seeing the physician. The physician should keep a copy of this form in the chart for their records).

Date of Exam:						
Name:					Date of Birth:	
Sex	Age:	Grade:	School:		Sport(s):	
Medicines and Alle	Medicines and Allergies: Please list all of the prescription and over-the-counter medicines and supplements (herbal and nutritional) that you are currently taking:					
						_
Do you have any a	llergies: Yes 🗆	No 🗆 If yes, pl	lease identify specific allergy below:			
☐ Medicines:			☐ Pollens:	☐ Food:	☐ Stinging Insects:	

Explain "Yes" answers below. Circle questions you do not know the answer to.

3E	NERAL QUESTIONS	Yes	No	MEDICAL QUESTIONS	Y
=	Has a doctor ever denied or restricted your participation in sports for			26. Do you cough, wheeze, or have difficulty breathing during or after	۳
	any reason?			exercise?	L
ī	Do you have any ongoing medical conditions? If so, please identify			27. Have you ever used an inhaler or taken asthma medicine?	Ι
	below: ☐ Asthma ☐ Anemia ☐ Diabetes ☐ Infections	l	1	28. Is there anyone in your family who has asthma?	L
	Other:			 Were you born without or are you missing a kidney, an eye, a testide 	Т
L	Have you ever spent the night in the hospital?			(males) or spieen, or any other organ?	L
L	Have you ever had surgery?			30. Do you have groin pain or a painful bulge or hemia in the groin area?	L
ŧΕ	ART HEALTH QUESTIONS ABOUT YOU	Yes	No	31. Have you had infectious mononucleosis (mono) within the last month?	L
į.	Have you ever passed out or nearly passed out DURING or AFTER		$\overline{}$	32. Do you have any rashes, pressure sores, or other skin problems?	Ι
	exercise?	l	1	33. Have you had a herpes or MRSA skin infection?	Т
5.	Have you ever had discomfort, pain, tightness, or pressure in your		$\overline{}$	34. Have you ever had a head injury or concussion?	Т
	chest during exercise?	l	1	35. Have you ever had a hit or blow to the head that caused confusion,	t
T	Does your heart ever race or skip beats (irregular beats) during		-	prolonged headaches, or memory problems?	ı
	exercise?	l	1	36. Do you have a history of seizure disorder?	t
	Has a doctor ever told you that you have any heart problems? If so,	-	-	37. Do you have headaches with exercise?	۰
	check all that apply:	l	1	38. Have you ever had numbness, tingling, or weakness in your arms or	۰
	☐ High blood pressure ☐ A heart murmur	l	1	legs after being hit or falling?	ı
	☐ High cholesterol ☐ A heart infection	I	1	 Have you ever been unable to move your arms or legs after being hit 	۰
	□Kawasaki disease □ Other:	l	1	or faling?	ı
		-	-	40. Have you ever become ill while exercising in the heat?	۰
9.	Has a doctor ever ordered a test for your heart? (For example,	l	1	41. Do you get frequent muscle gramps when exercising?	+
	ECG/EKG, echocardiogram)	-	-	42. Do you or someone in your family have sickle cell trait or disease?	+
IQ.	Do you get lightheaded or feel more short of breath than expected	l	1	43. Have you had any problems with your eyes or vision?	+
	during exercise?		—		+
1.	Have you ever had an unexplained seizure?	-	—	44. Have you had any eye injuries?	+
12.	Do you get more tired or short of breath more quickly than your friends	l	1	45. Do you wear glasses or contact lenses?	4
_	during exercise?	-	-	46. Do you wear protective eyewear, such as goggles or a face shield?	+
	ART HEALTH QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR FAMILY	Yes	No	47. Do you worry about your weight?	4
3.	Has any family member or relative died of heart problems or had an	l	1	48. Are you trying to or has anyone recommended that you gain or lose	ı
	unexpected or unexplained sudden death before age 50 (including	l	1	weight?	4
	drowning, unexplained car accident, or sudden infant death	l	1	49. Are you on a special diet or do you avoid certain types of foods?	+
	syndrome)?		—	50. Have you ever had an eating disorder?	4
14.	Does anyone in your family have hypertrophic cardiomyopathy, Marfan	l	1	 Do you have any concerns that you would like to discuss with the 	ı
	syndrome, arrhythmogenic right ventricular cardiomyopathy, long QT	l	1	doctor?	L
	syndrome, short QT syndrome, Brugada syndrome, or	l	1	FEMALES ONLY	L
_	catecholaminergic polymorphic ventricular tachycardia?	_	—	52. Have you ever had a menstrual period?	L
15.	Does anyone in your family have a heart problem, pacemaker, or	l	1	53. How old were you when you had your first menstrual period?	L
	implanted defibrillator?			54. How many periods have you had in the last 12 months?	L
16.	Has anyone in your family had unexplained fainting, unexplained	l	1	Explain "Yes" answers here:	
_	seizures, or near drowning?	-	_	Explain Tes answers nere:	
	NE AND JOINT QUESTIONS	Yes	No		
17.	Have you ever had an injury to a bone, muscle, ligament, or tendon	l	1		
	that caused you to miss a practice or a game?				
	Have you ever had any broken or fractured bones or dislocated joints?				
19.	Have you ever had an injury that required x-rays, MRI, CT scan,		I -		
	injections, therapy, a brace, a cast, or crutches?			l I	
	Have you ever had a stress fracture?				
21.	Have you ever been told that you have or have you had an x-ray for		$\overline{}$	1	
	neck instability or atlantoaxial instability? (Down syndrome or	I	1		
	dwarfism)	I	1		
	Do you regularly use a brace, orthotics, or other assistive device?			1	
22	Do you have a bone, muscle, or joint injury that bothers you?			1	
	DO YOU have a bone, muscle, or joint injury that bothers you?			1 1	
23.		_	-	1 1	
23. 24.	Do any of your joints become painful, swollen, feel warm, or look red? Do you have any history of juvenile arthritis or connective tissue				

I hereby state that, to the best of my knowledge, my answers to the	above questions are complete and correct.	
Signature of Athlete:	Signature of Parent(s) or Guardian:	Date:

PRE-PARTICIPATION PHYSICAL EVALUATION PHYSICAL EXAMINATION FORM

Name:			Date of Birth:		
Physician Reminders:					
 Consider additional questions on more sensitive issues. 					
 Do you feel stressed out or under a lot of pressure? 					
 Do you ever feel sad, hopeless, depressed, or anxious? 					
 Do you feel safe at your home or residence? 					
 Have you ever tried cigarettes, chewing tobacco, snuff, or 	or dip?				
 During the past 30 days, did you use chewing tobacco, s 	nuff or dip?				
 Do you drink alcohol or use any other drugs? 					
 Have you ever taken anabolic steroids or used any other 	performance supplements?				
 Have you ever taken any supplements to help you gain or 	or lose weight or improve your p	erformance?			
 Do you wear a seat belt, use a helmet, and use condoms 					
Consider reviewing questions on cardiovascular symptoms	(Questions 5-14).				
EXAMINATION					
Height:	Weight:		☐ Male ☐ Female		
BP: / (/)	Pulse:	Vision: R 20/ L 20/	Corrected: Yes No		
MEDICAL	NORMAL		ABNORMAL FINDINGS		
Appearance					
 Marfan stigmata (kyphoscoliosis, high-arched palate, pectus 	1				
excavatum, arachnodactyly, arm span>height, hyperlaxity,	1				
myopia, MVP, aortic insufficiency)					
Eyes/Ears/Nose/Throat					
Pupils equal					
Hearing					
Lymph Nodes					
Heart*					
 Murmurs (auscultation standing, supine, +/- Valsalva) 					
 Location of point of maximal pulse (PMI) 					
Pulses					
 Simultaneous femoral and radial pulses 					
Lungs					
Abdomen					
Genitourinary (males only)**					
Skin					
 HSV, lesions suggestive of MRSA, tinea corporis 					
Neurologic***					
MUSCULOSKELETAL	NORMAL		ABNORMAL FINDINGS		
Neck					
Back					
Shoulder/arm					
Elbowforearm					
Hip/thigh					
Knee					
Leg/ankle					
Foothoes					
Functional	1				
Duck-walk, single leg hop	The same of the sa				
*Consider ECG, echocardiogram, and referral to cardiology for abnormal cardiac histo ***Consider cognitive evaluation or baseline neuropsychiatric testing if a history of signifi-	ry or exam; "Consider GU exam if in pri Icant concussion.	race setting. Having third party present is reco	mmended.		
 Cleared for all sports without restriction. 					
 Cleared for all sports without restriction with recommendation 	ns for further evaluation or to	reatment for:			
□ Not Cleared					
□ Pending further evaluation					
☐ For any sports					
☐ For certain sports (please list):					
Reason:					
Recommendations:					
These experiences the object of the desired and a second the		-t-de- The oblide descent			
I have examined the above-named student and completed the					
and participate in the sport(s) as outlined above. A copy of the conditions arise after the athlete has been cleared for participate of the conditions arise after the athlete has been cleared for participate of the conditions arise after the athlete has been cleared for participate of the conditions are conditions.	ne physical examis on record	ain my office and can be made a cind the clearance until the such	lem is resolved and the notestial consequences are		
completely explained to the athlete (and parentsiguardians).	and, see priyacies stay its	cana and creataince arisis are proo	nem is resource and the potential consequences are		
Name of Physician (type/print):			Date:		
Address:			Phone:		
Address: Signature of Physician (MD/DO/ARNP/PA/Chiroprador):			Phone:		

PRE-PARTICIPATION PHYSICAL EVALUATION Missouri State High School Activity Association (MSHSAA) Eligibility and Authorization Statement

STUDENT AGREEMENT (Regarding Conditions for Participation)

This application to represent my school in interscholastic athletics is entirely voluntary on my part and is made with the understanding that I have studied and understand the eligibility standards that I must meet to represent my school and that I have not violated any of them.

I have read, understand, and acknowledge receipt of the MSHSAA brochure entitled "How to Maintain and Protect Your High School Eligibility," which contains a summary of the eligibility rules of the MSHSAA. (I understand that a copy of the MSHSAA Handbook is on file with the principal and athletic administrator and that I may review it in its entirety, if I so choose. All MSHSAA by-laws and regulations from the Handbook are also posted on the MSHSAA website at www.mshsaa.org).

I understand that a MSHSAA member school must adhere to all rules and regulations that pertain to school-sponsored, interscholastic athletics programs, and I acknowledge that local rules may be more stringent than MSHSAA rules.

I also understand that if I do not meet the citizenship standards set by the school or if I am ejected from an interscholastic contest because of an unsportsmanlike act, it could result in me not being allowed to participate in the next contest or suspension from the team either temporarily or permanently.

I understand that if I drop a class, take course work through Post -Secondary Enrollment Option, Credit Flexibility, or other educational options, this action could affect compliance with MSHSAA academic standards and my eligibility.

I understand that participation in interscholastic athletics is a privilege and not a right. As a student athlete, I understand and accept the following responsibilities:

- I will respect the rights and beliefs of others and will treat others with courtesy and consideration.
- . I will be fully responsible for my own actions and the consequences of my actions.
- I will respect the property of others.
- I will respect and obey the rules of my school and laws of my community, state, and country.
- . I will show respect to those who are responsible for enforcing the rules of my school and the laws of my community, state, and country.

I have completed and/or verified that part of this certificate which requires me to list all previous injuries or additional conditions that are known to me which may affect my performance in so representing my school, and I verify that it is correct and complete.

Signature of Athlete:	Date:

PARENT PERMISSION (Authorization for Treatment, Release of Medical Information, and Insurance Information)

Informed Consent: By its nature, participation in interscholastic athletics includes risk of serious bodily injury and transmission of infectious disease such as HIV and Hepatitis B. Although serious injuries are not common and the risk of HIV transmission is almost nonexistent in supervised school athletic programs, it is impossible to eliminate all risk. Participants must obey all safety rules, report all physical and hygiene problems to their coaches, follow a proper conditioning program, and inspect their own equipment daily. PARENTS, GUARDIANS, OR STUDENTS WHO MAY NOT WISH TO ACCEPT RISK DESCRIBED IN THIS WARNING SHOULD NOT SIGN THIS FORM. STUDENTS MAY NOT PARTICIPATE IN MISHSAA. SPONSORED SPORT WITHOUT THE STUDENT'S AND PARENT'S IGUARDIAN'S SIGNATURE.

I understand that in the case of injury or illness requiring transportation to a health care facility, a reasonable attempt will be made to contact the parent or guardian in the case of the student-athlete being a minor, but that, if necessary, the student-athlete will be transported via ambulance to the nearest hospital.

We hereby give our consent for the above student to represent his/her school in interscholastic athletics. We also give our consent for him/her to accompany the team on trips and will not hold the school responsible in case of accident or injury whether it be en route to or from another school or during practice or an interscholastic contest, and we hereby agree to hold the school district of which this school is a part and the MSHSAA, their employees, agents, representatives, coaches, and volunteers harmless from any and all liability, actions, causes of action, debts, claims, or demands of every kind and nature whatsoever which may arise by or in connection with participation by my child/ward in any activities related to the interscholastic program of his/her school.

If we cannot be reached and in the event of an emergency, we also give our consent for the school to obtain through a physician or hospital of its choice, such medical care as is reasonably necessary for the welfare of the student, if he/she is injured in the course of school athletic activities. We authorize the release of necessary medical information to the physician, athletic trainer, and/or school personnel related to such treatment/care. We understand that the school may not provide transportation to all events, and permit / do not permit (CIRCLE ONE) my child to drive his/her vehicle in such a case.

To enable the MSHSAA to determine whether the herein named student is eligible to participate in interscholastic athletics in the MSHSAA member school, I consent to the release of any and all portions of school record files to MSHSAA, beginning with seventh grade, of the herein named student, specifically including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, birth and age records, name and residence address of parent(s) or guardian(s), residence address of the student, academic work completed, grades received, and attendance data.

We confirm that this application for the above student to represent his/her school in interscholastic athletics is made with the understanding that we have studied and understand the eligibility standards that our son/daughter must meet to represent his/her school and that he/she has not violated any of them. We also understand that if our son/daughter does not meet the citizenship standards set by the school or if he/she is ejected from an interscholastic contest because of an unsportsmanlike act, it could result in him/her not being allowed to participate in the next contest or suspension from the team either temporarily or permanently.

I consent to the MSHSAA's use of the herein named student's name, likeness, and athletic-related information in reports of contests, promotional literature of the Association and other materials and releases related to interscholastic athletics.

We further state that we have completed that part of this certificate which requires us to list all previous injuries or additional conditions that are known to us which may affect this athlete's performance or treatment and we certify that it is correct and complete.

The MSHSAA By-Laws provide that a student shall not be permitted to practice or compete for a school until it has verification that he/she has basic health/accident insurance coverage, which includes athletics. Our son/daughter is covered by basic health/accident insurance for the current school year as indicated below:

Name of Insurance Company:	Policy Number:
Theme of mountaine company.	r oney reamber.
Cinneture of Percent(s) or Curedian	Date:
Signature of Parent(s) or Guardian:	Date:

	PARENT AND STUDENT SIGNATURE (Concussion Materials)		
	I accept responsibility for reporting all injuries and illnesses to my school and medical staff (athletic trainer/team physician) including any signs and symptoms of a CONCUSSION. I have received and read the MSHSAA materials on Concussions, which includes information on the definition of a concussion, symptoms of a concussion, what to do if I have a concussion and how to prevent a concussion. I will inform my school and athletic trainer/team physician immediately if I experience any of these symptoms or if I witness a teammate with these symptoms.		
	Signature of Athlete:	Date:	
	Signature of Parent(s) or Guardian:	Date:	

EMERGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION			
Parent(s) or Guardian	Address	Phone Number	
Name of Contact	Relationship to Athlete	Phone Number	
Name of Contact	Relationship to Athlete	Phone Number	

Spring Dual Sport Policy and Contract

By MSHSAA policy, a student may participate in more than one sport during a season. In order for an athlete to participate in dual sports, the following guidelines have been developed.

- 1. The athlete must declare a primary sport and secondary sport
- 2. Practices and games for the primary sport take priority over the secondary sport, unless the secondary sport activity is of a higher-level/post-season event.
- 3. On days when both teams practice, it is up to the athlete to find out what is expected for the secondary practice and complete the workouts on his/her own.
- 4. Primary/Secondary games take priority over practice.
- 5. If the student is placed on the Academic Ineligibility List, he/she will be ineligible for both sports teams.

Athlete's Name:	
Primary Sport:	
Secondary Sport:	
I understand and will abide by the guidelines listed above.	
Athlete's Signature/Date:	
Parent/Guardian(s) Signature(s)/Date:	<u>/</u>
Primary Coach's Signature/Date:	
Secondary Coach's Signature/Date:	/

MSHSAA Concussion Information

A Parent's / Guardian's Guide To Concussion National Federation of State High School Associations (NFHS) Sports Medicine Advisory Committee (SMAC) What is a concussion? • A concussion is a brain injury that results in a temporary disruption of normal brain function. A concussion occurs when the brain is violently moved within the skull, typically from a blow to the head or body. An athlete does not need to lose consciousness (be "knocked-out") to suffer a concussion. In fact, less than ten percent of concussed athletes suffer loss of consciousness. Concussion Facts • A concussion is a type of traumatic brain injury. The result is a functional problem rather than a clear structural injury, causing it to be invisible to standard medical imaging (CT, or "CAT" scans, and MRI scans). • It is estimated that over 300,000 high school athletes across the United States suffer a concussion each year. (Data from the NFHS Injury Surveillance System, "High School RIOTM") • Concussions occur most frequently in football, but ice hockey, lacrosse, soccer, and basketball follow closely behind. All athletes are at risk, in all activities, regardless of gender. • A concussion may cause multiple symptoms that can be categorized as physical, behavioral, and cognitive. Physical symptoms include headaches, dizziness, and sleep changes, among others. Some behavioral changes include irritability. anxiety, and depression. Cognitive symptoms, or thinking changes, include trouble with focus, memory, and word finding. Many symptoms appear immediately after the injury, while others may develop over the next several days. Concussions can result in symptoms that interfere with normal daily life in addition to difficulty with school, work, and social life. • Concussion symptoms may last from a few days to several months. It is important to remember that each student athlete responds and recovers differently. • Athletes should not return to sports or activities that will put them at risk for another head injury until the concussion has completely resolved. To do so puts them at risk for prolonged symptoms and a more severe injury. Participation in physical education classes or exercise should be discussed with a qualified appropriate health-care professional. What should I do if I think my child has had a concussion? If an athlete is suspected of having a concussion, the athlete must be immediately removed from that activity and be evaluated by a qualified appropriate health-care professional. Continuing to exercise, practice, or play when experiencing concussion symptoms can lead to worsening of symptoms, increased risk for further injury and rarely death. Parents and coaches are not expected to make the diagnosis of a concussion. A medical professional trained in the diagnosis and management of concussions will do so. However, you must be aware of the signs and symptoms of a concussion. If you are suspicious that your child has suffered a concussion, your child must stop activity right away and be evaluated. When in doubt, sit them out! All student-athletes who sustain a concussion need to be evaluated by a health care professional who is experienced in concussion management. If your child's school has an athletic trainer (AT), please inform the AT of your concerns. You should call your child's physician and explain what has happened and follow your physician's instructions. If your child is vomiting, has a severe headache, is having difficulty staying awake or difficulty answering simple questions, you should take your child for immediate emergency medical attention. What are the signs and symptoms of a concussion? SIGNS OBSERVED BY PARENTS, ATHLETIC TRAINERS, FRIENDS, TEACHERS OR COACHES SYMPTOMS REPORTED BY ATHLETE Appears dazed or stunned Headache Is confused about what to do Nausea Forgets plays Balance problems or dizziness Is unsure of game, score, or opponent Double or fuzzy vision Moves clumsily Sensitivity to light or noise Answers questions slowly Feeling sluggish Loses consciousness

Feeling foggy or groggy Shows behavior or personality changes Concentration or memory problems Can't recall events prior to hit Confusion Can't recall events after hit When can an athlete return to play following a concussion? After suffering a concussion, no athlete should EVER return to play or practice on that same day. Studies have shown that the young brain does not recover quickly enough for an athlete to safely return to activity in such a short time. Concerns over athletes returning to play too quickly have led lawmakers in all 50 states and the District of Columbia to pass laws stating that no player shall return to play the day of a concussion, and the athlete must be cleared by an appropriate health- care professional before being allowed to return to play in games or practices. The laws typically also mandate that players, parents and coaches receive education on the dangers and recognizing the signs and symptoms of concussion. Click here to see what your state law requires: http://usafootball.com/blog/health-and-safety/see-whereyour-state-stands-concussion-law. Once an athlete no longer has symptoms of a concussion AND is cleared for return to play, the athlete should proceed with activity in a step-wise fashion in a carefully controlled and monitored environment to allow the brain to re-adjust to exertion. On average, the athlete will complete a new step every 24 hours. Please be aware that some states mandate for a longer duration before return to play. An example of a typical return-to-play schedule is shown below: Step 1: Light exercise, including walking or riding an exercise bike. No weightlifting. Step 2: Running in the gym or on the field. No helmet or other equipment. Step 3: Non-contact training drills in full equipment. Weight training can begin. Step 4: Full contact practice or training. Step 5: Game play. • If symptoms occur at any step, the athlete should immediately stop activity and consult with a qualified appropriate health-care professional before moving on. How can a concussion affect schoolwork? Following a concussion, many student-athletes have difficulty in school. These problems may last from days to months and often involve difficulties with short-term memory, concentration and organization. In many cases after the injury, it is best to decrease the athlete's class load early in the recovery phase. This may include staying home from school for a few days, followed by academic adjustments (such as a reduced class schedule), until the athlete has fully recovered. Decreasing the stress on the brain and not allowing the athlete to push through symptoms will hasten the recovery time and ensure total resolution of symptoms. What can I do? • Both you and your child should learn to recognize the "Signs and Symptoms" of concussion as listed above. • Encourage your child to tell the medical and/or coaching staff if any of these signs and symptoms appear after a blow to the head or body. • Emphasize to administrators, coaches, physicians, athletic trainers, teachers and other parents your concerns and expectations about concussion and safe play. • Encourage your child to tell the medical and coaching staff if there is suspicion that a teammate has suffered a concussion. • Ask teachers to monitor any decrease in grades or changes in behavior in students that could indicate a concussion. • Report concussions that occurred during the school year to appropriate school staff. This will help in monitoring injured athletes as they move to the next season's sports. Click here for more information about returning to school after a concussion: http://www.cdc.gov/headsup/basics/return to school.html Other Frequently Asked Questions: Why is it so important that athletes not return to play until they have completely recovered from a concussion? Student-athletes that return to play too soon may lengthen their recovery time. They also risk recurrent, cumulative or even catastrophic consequences if they suffer another concussion. Such risk and difficulties are prevented if each athlete is allowed time to recover from a concussion and the return-to-play decisions are carefully and individually made. No athlete should return to sport or other at-risk activity when signs or symptoms of concussion are

present and recovery is ongoing. Is a "CAT scan" or MRI needed to diagnose a concussion? No! Concussion diagnosis is based upon the athlete's history of the injury and an appropriate health-care professional's physical examination and testing. CT and MRI scans are rarely needed following a concussion. However, they are helpful in identifying life-threatening head and brain injuries such as skull fractures, bleeding or swelling. What is the best treatment to help my child recover quickly from a concussion? Treatment for concussion varies from one person to the next. Immediately after a concussion, the best treatment is physical and cognitive rest. Exposure to loud noises, bright lights, computers, video games, television and phones (including text messaging) may worsen the symptoms of a concussion. You should allow your child to rest as much as possible in the days following a concussion. As the symptoms lessen, the appropriate health-care professional may allow increased use of computers, phone, video games, etc., but the access must be lessened or eliminated if symptoms worsen. There are no medications to treat concussions, but an appropriate health-care professional may prescribe medications and therapies to treat symptoms of a concussion, such as headache, dizziness, sleep changes, etc. Some athletes may require rehabilitative therapies, such as physical, occupational, vestibular, ocular or speech/cognitive. Others may require treatment for mood and behavior changes. How long do the symptoms of a concussion usually last? For most concussions, symptoms will usually go away within 2-3 weeks of the initial injury. You should anticipate that your child will likely be held out of full participation in sports for several weeks following a concussion. In some cases, symptoms may last for many more weeks or sometimes several months. Symptoms such as headache, memory problems, poor concentration, difficulty sleeping and mood changes can interfere with school, work, and social interactions. The potential for such long-term symptoms indicates the need for careful management of all concussions. How many concussions can an athlete have before consideration to stop playing sports? There is no "magic number" of concussions that determine when an athlete should give up playing contact or collision sports. The circumstances that surround each individual injury, such as how the injury occurred as well as the number and duration of symptoms following the concussion, are very important. These circumstances must be individually considered when assessing an athlete's risk for potential long-term consequences and potentially more serious brain injuries. The decision to "retire" from sports is a decision best reached after a complete evaluation by your child's primary care provider and consultation with an appropriate health-care professional who specializes in treating concussions. I've read recently that concussions may cause long-term brain damage in athletes, especially professional football players. Is this a risk for high school athletes who have had a concussion? The issue of "chronic traumatic encephalopathy (CTE)" has received a great deal of media attention. Currently, CTE can only be diagnosed by autopsy. It has been described in the brains of professional and amateur athletes, including boxers, football players, hockey players, and soccer players, among others. Very little is known about all the causes of these dramatic abnormalities in the brains of these unfortunate players. At this time we do not know the long-term effects of concussions or the cumulative effects of multiple sub-concussive blows that happen during high school athletics. In light of this, it is important to carefully manage every concussion and all concussion-like signs and symptoms on an individual basis. Some of this information has been adapted from the CDC's "Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports" materials by the NFHS's Sports Medicine Advisory Committee. Please go to www.cdc.gov/ncipc/tbi/Coaches Tool Kit.htm for more information. Revised and Approved April 2016 April 2013 April 2010 DISCLAIMER – NFHS Position Statements and Guidelines The NFHS regularly distributes position statements and guidelines to promote public awareness

of certain health and safety-related issues. Such information is neither exhaustive nor necessarily applicable to all circumstances or individuals, and is no substitute for consultation with appropriate health-care professionals. Statutes, codes or environmental conditions may be relevant. NFHS position statements or guidelines should be considered in conjunction with other pertinent materials when taking action or planning care. The NFHS reserves the right to rescind or modify any such document at any time.